
 
 

Regulatory and General Purposes 
Committee 
 

Date: Tuesday, 7 June 2022 
Time: 6.00 p.m. 
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 
 
Contact Officer: Anne Beauchamp 
Tel: 0151 691 8608 
e-mail: annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
2. APOLOGIES  
 
3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests, in connection with any item on 
the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 23 

March 2022. 
 

5. MINUTES OF THE REGULATORY PANEL (Pages 5 - 22) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the 

Regulatory Panel held on 11 March and 8 April 2022. 
 

Please note that public seating is limited therefore members of the public 
are encouraged to arrive in good time. 
 
Wirral Council is fully committed to equalities and our obligations under 
The Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any 
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting, 
please let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to facilitate 
where possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


6. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE REGULATORY PANEL 
AND THE CHARITABLE TRUSTS SUB-COMMITTEE (Pages 23 - 
28) 

 
7. REQUEST TO USE THE WIRRAL COAT OF ARMS (Pages 29 - 38) 
 
 
 



REGULATORY AND GENERAL PURPOSES 
COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 23 March 2022 

 
Present: Councillor A Hodson (Chair) 

 
 Councillors C Jones 

Kenny 
C O'Hagan 
I Williams 
KJ Williams 
 

S Williams 
A Wright 
M Booth 
C Cooke (In place 
of E Gleaves) 
 

Apologies Councillors D Mitchell 
D Burgess-Joyce 
 

M Collins 
J Bird 

 
 

20 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and those watching the 
webcast. 
 

21 APOLOGIES  
 
The Chair confirmed the apologies of Councillors Jo Bird, Mike Collins and 
David Burgess-Joyce, also Councillor Emily Gleaves, with Councillor Chris 
Cooke deputising for her. 
 

22 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Committee were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
and non-pecuniary interests in connection with any item on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest. 
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

23 MINUTES  
 
On a motion by Councillor C O’Hagan and seconded by Councillor J Williams, 
it was - 
 
Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 20 
January 2022 be approved. 
 

24 MINUTES OF THE REGULATORY PANEL  

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
On a motion by Councillor C Jones and seconded by Councillor S Williams, it 
was -   
 
Resolved – That the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the 
Regulatory Panel held on 15 December 2021, 22 December 2021, 14 
January 2022, 21 January 2022, 9 February 2022, 11 February 2022, 23 
February 2022 and 4 March 2022 be approved. 
 

25 CONFERMENT OF THE TITLE OF HONORARY ALDERMAN  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report requesting that 
Members of the Committee give consideration as to whether to recommend to 
Council that the title of Honorary Alderman be conferred on former Councillor 
Pat Hackett. 
 
The Head of Legal Services reported that former Councillor Pat Hackett had 
been a Member of the Council from 10 May 1994 and had represented New 
Brighton Ward as a Labour Party Member until 25 September 2020 (with a 
short gap in service from May 2008 until May 2011).  Pat Hackett had served 
as Leader of the Council between 14 May 2019 until retiring from the Council 
in September 2020 and he also served as Mayor of Wirral for the Municipal 
Year 2016/17.  The Council had previously determined that former Members 
who had served twenty years on the Council or a predecessor Council were 
eligible for nomination to this award and therefore former Councillor Pat 
Hackett is eligible to have the title of Honorary Alderman conferred upon him. 
 
Members were informed that Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 
provides that the title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman may be 
conferred by the Council on persons who are persons of distinction and/or 
who have, in its opinion, rendered eminent service to the place or area.  The 
title is to be conferred by a resolution passed by not less than two thirds of the 
Members voting on it at a meeting of the Council specially convened for the 
purpose.  
 
It was reported that successful nominees for the office of Honorary Aldermen 
and Alderwomen of this Council had previously been awarded a suitable 
badge at a special ceremony.  Currently, former Councillor Pat Hackett was 
the only former Councillor eligible to be appointed as an Honorary Alderman 
based on the Council’s criteria. 
 
Members were further informed that the intention would be to present former 
Councillor Pat Hackett with a badge of office, the total cost of which would be 
approximately £682.75 and there would also be the small cost of inscribing his 
name on the Roll of Honour Board which could be met from existing budgets. 
 

Page 2



Councillor A Hodson announced that he became a Councillor in 1994 at the 
same time as Pat Hackett and therefore was very pleased for this matter to be 
considered and for the title of Honorary Alderman to be bestowed on 
someone worthwhile for the honour. 
 
Councillor C Jones reflected these comments and recommended that the 
Standards and Constitution Committee consider exploring the possibility of a 
protocol in order that anyone with 20 years’ service could be automatically 
considered for the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman to be conferred 
upon them rather than having to be nominated. 
 
On a motion by Councillor C Jones and seconded by Councillor A Hodson, it 
was –  
 
Resolved –  
 
(1) That the conferment of the title of Honorary Alderman on former 

Councillor Pat Hackett be recommended to Council in accordance 
with Section 249(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
(2) That a recommendation be made to the Constitution and Standards 

Committee to explore having a protocol in place in order that 
anyone with 20 years’ service could be automatically considered 
for the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman to be conferred 
upon them. 

 
26 BOROUGH ELECTION FEES AND CHARGES  

 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report detailing the 
proposed fees to be paid to the Returning Officer and his staff employed to 
undertake duties at the local elections held within the Borough. 
 
The Electoral Services Manager reported that the next scheduled Borough 
elections will take place on Thursday 5 May 2022 and the Borough election 
fees for 2022 were set in in Appendix 1 to the report.  The fees and charges 
had been considered and endorsed by the Returning Officer. 
 
Members were advised that consideration had been given to the fees paid to 
the Returning Officer and his staff and he had been informed by both national 
guidance and information gathered from other Merseyside Local Authorities.  
Annual fees were uprated using the retail price index percentage increase.  It 
was reported that in accordance with the Representation of the People’s Act 
1983, the cost of a local government election would be met from the local 
authority budget. 
 
On a motion by Councillor C Jones and seconded by Councillor A Hodson, it 
was –  

Page 3



 
Resolved – That the fees to be paid to the Returning Officer and his staff 
employed to undertake duties at the local elections held within the 
Borough as set out within Appendix 1 to the report be noted. 
 
 

Page 4



REGULATORY PANEL 
 

Friday, 11 March 2022 
 
 

Present: Councillor A Hodson (Chair) 

 
 Councillors M Booth 

D Burgess-Joyce 
 

D Mitchell 
C O'Hagan 
 

 
 

143 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest. 
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

144 MINUTE'S SILENCE  
 
The Chair led Members of the Panel in a minute’s silence in support of the 
victims of the war in Ukraine. 
 

145 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - TOYOTA PRIUS, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER EK12 TYG  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
re-license a Toyota Prius, registration number EK12 TYG, beyond the normal 
overage date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had been 
licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 23 July 2020 and the current licence 
was due to expire on 28 March 2022.  The date of first registration of the 
vehicle was 28 March 2012.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the 
Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available 
for Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Toyota Prius, registration 
number EK12 TYG, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

146 APPLICATION TO LICENSE THE HONDA CR-V AS A PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLE  
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
determine whether the Honda CR-V meets the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
In September 2017 Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee approved criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  
The criteria were set out within Appendix 1 attached to the report and state 
that: 
 

 Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire 
vehicles are suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire 
vehicles, that it is in a suitable mechanical condition and is safe and 
comfortable. 

 Although the criteria set out in this document may have been met, 
approval for the issuing of a licence may be withheld if the Licensing 
Authority is of the opinion that the vehicle is unsuitable for use as a 
private hire vehicle to transport members of the public for hire and 
reward. 

 A vehicle that meets the criteria to be licensed as a private hire vehicle 
must have passed the MOT and Compliance Test in accordance with 
the Licensing Authority’s procedure for testing vehicles before it can be 
licensed and before each renewal of that licence. 

 
The proprietor of the vehicle was unable to attend the meeting for his vehicle 
to be inspected 
 
Resolved – That the applicant be instructed to attend a future meeting of 
the Regulatory Panel should he wish to pursue his application. 
 

147 APPLICATION TO LICENSE THE VOLKSWAGEN TOURAN AS A 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
determine whether the Volkswagen Touran meets the Council’s criteria for 
licensing Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
In September 2017 Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee approved criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  
The criteria were set out within Appendix 1 attached to the report and state 
that: 
 

 Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire 
vehicles are suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire 
vehicles, that it is in a suitable mechanical condition and is safe and 
comfortable. 

 Although the criteria set out in this document may have been met, 
approval for the issuing of a licence may be withheld if the Licensing 

Page 6



Authority is of the opinion that the vehicle is unsuitable for use as a 
private hire vehicle to transport members of the public for hire and 
reward. 

 A vehicle that meets the criteria to be licensed as a private hire vehicle 
must have passed the MOT and Compliance Test in accordance with 
the Licensing Authority’s procedure for testing vehicles before it can be 
licensed and before each renewal of that licence. 

 
Members of the Regulatory Panel were asked to consider whether they were 
satisfied that the Volkswagen Touran complied with the Council’s criteria for 
licensing Private Hire Vehicles and whether it was a suitable vehicle to be 
licensed.   Should this be the case Members were further asked to consider 
whether to license this diesel fuelled Volkswagen Touran, registration number  
SA68 RXH as a Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had been examined at one 
of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificate was 
available for Members.  
 
The proprietor of the vehicle attended the meeting and Members of the Panel 
inspected the vehicle. 
 
Resolved –  
 
(1)  That the Volkswagen Touran meets the criteria for licensing Private 

Hire Vehicles. 
 
(2)  That the application to license the Volkswagen Touran, registration 

number SA68 RXH as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted to carry 4 
passengers. 

 
148 APPLICATION TO LICENSE A VAUXHALL VIVARO VX8 AS A HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE VEHICLE  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Vauxhall Vivaro, registration number DX68 WYO, as a Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle. 
 
The current criteria that a Hackney Carriage Vehicle must comply with before 
being granted a licence includes the following:  
 
(i) that every vehicle must comply with the Council's Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licence conditions;  
 
(ii) that every vehicle must be purpose built and built to accommodate 
wheelchair disabled passengers;  
 

Page 7



(iii) that every vehicle must be properly tested and roadworthy to a standard 
approved by the Council's vehicle inspectors, such testing to include the 
structural integrity;  
 
(iv) that all vehicles licensed must be properly insured and that proof of such 
insurance be shown to the Council either upon application or before issue of 
licence;  
 
(v) that every vehicle must be three years old or less from the date of first 
registration or date of manufacture (whichever is the earlier).   
 
The vehicle had been licensed as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle from 15 
January 2019 until 14 January 2022 when the licence expired. The date of 
first registration of the vehicle was 20 December 2018. It therefore does not 
meet the criteria that every vehicle must be three years old or less. The 
vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations 
and the pass certificates were available for Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle attended the meeting with his vehicle which was 
inspected by Members of the Panel. 
 

Resolved – That the application to licence the Vauxhall Vivaro VX8, 

registration number DX68 WYO as a Hackney Carriage Vehicle be 

granted. 
 

149 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - RENAULT TRAFIC, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER LX61 DGE  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
re-license a Renault Trafic, registration number LX61 DGE, beyond the 
normal overage date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had 
been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 3 September 2018 and the 
current licence was due to expire on 21 February 2022 however it had been 
extended to the date of this meeting.  The date of first registration of the 
vehicle was 21 February 2012.  The vehicle was used to undertake work 
exclusively under and in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of a 
contract issued by the Council to transport children to and from educational 
establishments.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available for 
Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Renault Trafic, 
registration number LX61 DGE, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for 

Page 8



six months subject to the plate on the front of the vehicle being 
renewed. 
 

150 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - CITROEN RELAY, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER BX12 BVL  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
re-license a Citroen Relay, registration number BX12 BVL, beyond the normal 
overage date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had been 
licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 2 January 2020 and the current 
licence was due to expire on 15 March 2022.  The date of first registration of 
the vehicle was 15 March 2012.  The vehicle was used to undertake work 
exclusively under and in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of a 
contract issued by the Council to transport children to and from educational 
establishments.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available for 
Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Citroen Relay, registration 
number BX12 BVL, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months 
subject to the off side ball joint being repaired and further inspection by 
a Licensing Officer. 
 

151 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - RENAULT MASTER, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER EX59 GNK  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
re-license a Renault Master, registration number EX59 GNK, beyond the 
normal overage date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had 
been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 21 March 2019 and the current 
licence was due to expire on 19 March 2022.  The date of first registration of 
the vehicle was 21 September 2009.  On 17 September 2021 an application 
was granted by the Regulatory Panel for a six month licence.  The vehicle 
would be used to undertake work exclusively under and in strict accordance 
with the terms and conditions of a contract issued by the Council to transport 
children to and from educational establishments.  The vehicle had been 
examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass 
certificates were available for Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 

Page 9



Resolved – That the application to license the Renault Master, 
registration number EX59 GNK, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for 
six months. 
 

152 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - IVECO FORD DAILY, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER LT52 PXY  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
re-license a Iveco Ford Daily, registration number LT52 PXY, beyond the 
normal overage date for a licensed Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had 
been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle since 3 September 2018 and the 
current licence was due to expire on 2 March 2022 however it had been 
extended to the date of this meeting.  The date of first registration of the 
vehicle was 21 February 2002.  The vehicle was used to undertake work 
exclusively under and in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of a 
contract issued by the Council to transport children to and from educational 
establishments.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available for 
Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Iveco Ford Daily, 
registration number LT52 PXY, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted until 
the contract finishes in July and subject to the advisories on the MOT 
being carried out and proof of this work being provided to a Licensing 
Officer. 
 

153 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act.  The Public Interest Test 
had been applied and favoured exclusion. 
 

154 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SIA)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether SIA should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
SIA attended the meeting and made representations. SIA responded to 
questions from Members and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Members considered carefully the responses made by SIA. 

Page 10



 
Members gave due consideration to all of the representations made and 
exercised their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of 
the representations made.   
 
Resolved (3:2) (Councillors A Hodson and D Burgess-Joyce dissenting) 
–  
 
(1) That SIA be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 

Licence subject to the completion of the next available Driver 
Awareness Course. 

 
(2) That SIA be given a written warning as to his future conduct. 
 

155 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (AAW)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether AAW should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
AAW attended the meeting and made representations in respect of the 
application.  
 
Members of the Panel and their legal advisor questioned AAW. 
 
Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised 
their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 
 
Resolved – That AAW’s application for a Private Hire Driver Licence be 
granted. 
 

156 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (PW)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether PW should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
PW attended the meeting and made representations. PW responded to 
questions from Members and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Members considered carefully the responses made by PW. 
 
Members gave due consideration to all of the representations made and 
exercised their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of 
the representations made.   
 
Resolved –  
 

Page 11



(3) That PW be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 
Licence. 
 

(4) That PW be given a written warning as to his future conduct. 
 

157 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (JJA)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether JJA should be granted a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
JJA attended the meeting and made representations in respect of the 
application.  
 
Members of the Panel and their legal advisor questioned JJA. 
 
Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised 
their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 
 
Resolved – That JJA’s application for a Private Hire Driver Licence be 
granted. 
 

158 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SPM)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether SPM should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
SPM attended the meeting and made representations. SPM responded to 
questions from Members and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Members considered carefully the responses made by SPM. 
 
Members gave due consideration to all of the representations made and 
exercised their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of 
the representations made.   
 
Resolved –  
 
(5) That SPM be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 

Licence. 
 

(6) That SPM be given a written warning as to his future conduct. 
 

(7) That SPM must provide a DVLA check code to the Licensing Office 
once a month in order that a monthly check may be made with 
DVLA for a year and should this not be provided SPM be instructed 
to attend the Regulatory Panel. 

Page 12



 
159 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (MDKR)  

 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received 
by MDKR for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  MDKR attended the 
meeting with his wife and made representations in respect of the application. 
 
Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised 
their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 
  
In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  
The Panel applied the principle of proportionality enshrined within the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
  
Resolved – That MDKR’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused. 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



REGULATORY PANEL 
 

Friday, 8 April 2022 
 
 

Present: Councillor A Hodson (Chair) 

 
 Councillors M Booth 

D Burgess-Joyce 
 

D Mitchell 
 

 
 

160 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest. 
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

161 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - CITROEN RELAY, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER GN61 JVW  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Citroen Relay, registration number GN61 JVW outside of the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
The applicant was unable to present the vehicle for consideration. 
 
Resolved – That this matter be deferred to a future date. 
 

162 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD TRANSIT, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER EK54 YFW  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Ford Transit, registration number EK54 YFW, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  The vehicle had previously 
been licensed as a Private Hire Vehicle from 19 March 2018 until 18 March 
2022 when the licence expired.  The vehicle could not be relicensed due to a 
delay in obtaining a number of parts to enable it to be repaired prior to being 
presented for the MOT and Compliance tests.  The date of first registration of 
the vehicle was 18 October 2004.  The vehicle would be used to undertake 
work exclusively under and in strict accordance with the terms and conditions 
of a contract issued by the Council to transport children to and from 
educational establishments.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the 
Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available 
for Members. 

Public Document Pack

Page 15



 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Ford Transit, registration 
number EK54 YFW, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

163 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - PEUGEOT BOXER, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER WX61 BZD  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Peugeot Boxer, registration number WX61 BZD, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.   
 
The application had subsequently been withdrawn. 
 
Resolved – That this matter be withdrawn. 
 

164 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD MONDEO, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER YD12 MHO  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Ford Mondeo, registration number YD12 MHO, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  The vehicle had been licensed 
as a Private Hire Vehicle from 21 June 2019 until 24 March 2022 when the 
licence expired.  The date of first registration of the vehicle was 24 March 
2012.   The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised 
testing stations and the pass certificates were available for Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Ford Mondeo, registration 
number YD12 MHO, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

165 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - FORD MONDEO, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER SP12 TFU  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Ford Mondeo, registration number SP12 TFU, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  The vehicle had been licensed 
as a Private Hire Vehicle from 1 November 2018 to 1 April 2022 when the 
licence expired.  The date of first registration of the vehicle was 1 April 2012.  
The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing 
stations and the pass certificates were available for Members. 
 

Page 16



The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Ford Mondeo, registration 
number SP12 TFU, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

166 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - PEUGEOT 308, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER DX12 GAU  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Peugeot 308, registration number DX12 GAU, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  The vehicle had been licensed 
as a Private Hire Vehicle from 21 July 2015 to 18 July 2020 and then since 10 
August 2020 with the licence due to expire on 18 April 2022.  The date of first 
registration of the vehicle was 18 April 2012.  The vehicle had been examined 
at one of the Council’s authorised testing stations and the pass certificates 
were available for Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Peugeot 308, registration 
number DX12 GAU, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

167 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - PEUGEOT 3008, 
REGISTRATION NUMBER YH12 UCM  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Peugeot 3008, registration number YH12 UCM, outside the current 
age policy for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  The vehicle had been licensed 
as a Private Hire Vehicle since 14 November 2017 and the current licence 
was due to expire on 12 April 2022.  The date of first registration of the vehicle 
was 13 April 2012.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available for 
Members. 
 
The proprietor of the vehicle was present at the meeting with the vehicle 
which Members of the Panel inspected.   
 
Resolved – That the application to license the Peugeot 3008, registration 
number YH12 UCM, as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted for six months. 
 

168 APPLICATION TO LICENSE THE TESLA MODEL S AS A PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLE  
 

Page 17



The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
determine whether the Tesla Model S meets the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
In September 2017 Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee approved criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  
The criteria were set out within Appendix 1 attached to the report and state 
that: 
 

 Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire 
vehicles are suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire 
vehicles, that it is in a suitable mechanical condition and is safe and 
comfortable. 

 Although the criteria set out in this document may have been met, 
approval for the issuing of a licence may be withheld if the Licensing 
Authority is of the opinion that the vehicle is unsuitable for use as a 
private hire vehicle to transport members of the public for hire and 
reward. 

 A vehicle that meets the criteria to be licensed as a private hire vehicle 
must have passed the MOT and Compliance Test in accordance with 
the Licensing Authority’s procedure for testing vehicles before it can be 
licensed and before each renewal of that licence. 

 
Members of the Regulatory Panel were asked to consider whether they were 
satisfied that the Tesla Model S complied with the Council’s criteria for 
licensing Private Hire Vehicles and whether it was a suitable vehicle to be 
licensed.   Should this be the case Members were further asked to consider 
whether to license this electric-fuelled Tesla Model S, registration number  
LC67 DJE as a Private Hire Vehicle.   
 
It was reported that the applicant had not yet purchased the vehicle, which 
was currently located in Luton. It was reported that the cost of the vehicle was 
£38,990 and the applicant advised that he did not want to purchase the  
vehicle unless it was determined that a Tesla Model S could be licensed as a 
Private Hire Vehicle with Wirral Council.    

 
Should the Panel determine that this vehicle may be licensed as a Private 
Hire Vehicle, it would be examined at one of the Council’s authorised testing 
stations for the purposes of an MOT and Compliance Test.  Members were 
provided with a copy of the Auto Trader advert for the vehicle which was 
attached at Appendix 2 to the report. 
. 
The proprietor of the vehicle attended the meeting. 
 
Resolved –  
 

Page 18



(1)  That the Tesla Model S meets the criteria for licensing Private Hire 
Vehicles. 

 
(2)  That the application to license the Tesla Model S, registration 

number LC67 DJE as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted subject to 
receipt of MOT and Compliance certificates. 

 
169 PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENCE APPLICATION - PEUGEOT 508, 

REGISTRATION NUMBER DG17 FSN  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
license a Peugeot 508, registration number DG17 FSN, as a Private Hire 
Vehicle outside the current criteria which states that side and rear windows 
must allow at least 70% of light to be transmitted through. 
 
The applicant did not attend the meeting. 
 

Resolved – That the applicant be allowed to attend a future meeting of 

the Regulatory Panel should they wish to pursue the application. 
 

170 APPLICATION TO LICENSE THE KIA XCEED AS A PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLE  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
determine whether the Kia XCeed meets the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
In September 2017 Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee approved criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  
The criteria were set out within Appendix 1 attached to the report and state 
that: 
 

 Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire 
vehicles are suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire 
vehicles, that it is in a suitable mechanical condition and is safe and 
comfortable. 

 Although the criteria set out in this document may have been met, 
approval for the issuing of a licence may be withheld if the Licensing 
Authority is of the opinion that the vehicle is unsuitable for use as a 
private hire vehicle to transport members of the public for hire and 
reward. 

 A vehicle that meets the criteria to be licensed as a private hire vehicle 
must have passed the MOT and Compliance Test in accordance with 
the Licensing Authority’s procedure for testing vehicles before it can be 
licensed and before each renewal of that licence. 

 

Page 19



Members of the Regulatory Panel were asked to consider whether they were 
satisfied that the Kia XCeed complied with the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles and whether it was a suitable vehicle to be licensed.   
Should this be the case Members were further asked to consider whether to 
license this diesel-fuelled Kia XCeed, registration number  FV70 WBP as a 
Private Hire Vehicle.  The vehicle had been examined at one of the Council’s 
authorised testing stations and the pass certificates were available. 
. 
The proprietor of the vehicle attended the meeting with the vehicle which was 
inspected by Members. 
 
Resolved –  
 
(1)  That the Kia XCeed meets the criteria for licensing Private Hire 

Vehicles. 
 
(2)  That the application to license the Kia XCeed, registration number 

FV70 WBP as a Private Hire Vehicle be granted. 
 

171 APPLICATION TO LICENSE THE HONDA CR-V AS A PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLE  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received to 
determine whether the Honda CR-V meets the Council’s criteria for licensing 
Private Hire Vehicles. 
 
In September 2017 Members of the Licensing, Health and Safety and General 
Purposes Committee approved criteria for licensing Private Hire Vehicles.  
The criteria were set out within Appendix 1 attached to the report and state 
that: 
 

 Wirral Council must be satisfied that vehicles licensed as private hire 
vehicles are suitable in type, size and design for use as private hire 
vehicles, that it is in a suitable mechanical condition and is safe and 
comfortable. 

 Although the criteria set out in this document may have been met, 
approval for the issuing of a licence may be withheld if the Licensing 
Authority is of the opinion that the vehicle is unsuitable for use as a 
private hire vehicle to transport members of the public for hire and 
reward. 

 A vehicle that meets the criteria to be licensed as a private hire vehicle 
must have passed the MOT and Compliance Test in accordance with 
the Licensing Authority’s procedure for testing vehicles before it can be 
licensed and before each renewal of that licence. 

 
The applicant did not attend the meeting. 
 

Page 20



Resolved – That the applicant be allowed to attend a future meeting of 
the Regulatory Panel should they wish to pursue the application. 
 

172 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Resolved - That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by paragraph 1 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act.  The Public Interest Test 
had been applied and favoured exclusion. 
 

173 HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER LICENCE  (MJD)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether MJD should be granted a Hackney Carriage Driver Licence. 
 
MJD attended the meeting and made representations in respect of the 
application.  
 
Members of the Panel and their legal advisor questioned MJD. 
 
Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised 
their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 
 
Resolved – That MJD’s application for a Private Hire Driver Licence be 
granted. 
 

174 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (SMMCC)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether SMcC should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
SMcC attended the meeting and made representations. SMcC responded to 
questions from Members and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Members considered carefully the responses made by SMcC. 
 
Members gave due consideration to all of the representations made and 
exercised their rights to consider each case on its individual merits in light of 
the representations made.   
 
Resolved –  
 

Page 21



(1) That SMcC be allowed to continue to hold a Private Hire Driver 
Licence subject to the completion of the next available Driver 
Awareness Course. 

 
(2) That SMcC be given a written warning as to his future conduct. 
 

175 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (NU)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance submitted a report for Members to 
consider whether NU should continue to hold a Private Hire Driver Licence. 
 
NU attended the meeting and made representations.  NU responded to 
questions from Members and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Members considered carefully the representations made by NU. 
 
In determining the matter Members gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  
The Panel applied the principle of proportionality enshrined within the Human 
Rights Act 1998 and considered that in seeking to ensure the legitimate aim of 
the protection and safety of the public, a revocation of the licence with 
immediate effect was justified in the circumstances. 
 
Resolved – That, in the interests of public safety, NU’s Private Hire 
Driver Licence be revoked with immediate effect. 
 

176 PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCE (LSF)  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application received 
by LSF for the grant of a Private Hire Driver Licence.  LSF attended the 
meeting with his solicitor and made representations in respect of the 
application. 
 
Members gave due consideration to the representations made and exercised 
their right to consider each case on its individual merits in light of the 
representations made. 
  
In determining the matter Members also gave serious consideration to their 
overriding responsibility in respect of the protection and safety of the public.  
The Panel applied the principle of proportionality enshrined within the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
  
Resolved – That LSF’s application for the grant of a Private Hire Driver 
Licence be refused. 
 
 

Page 22



  

 

REGULATORY AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 7 June 2022 
 

REPORT TITLE: APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO  

THE REGULATORY PANEL AND  

THE CHARITABLE TRUSTS SUB-COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE  

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is for the Regulatory and General Purposes Committee to: 
 

i) note the process for appointing Members to the Charitable Trusts Sub-
Committee, the Terms of Reference of which have been approved by 
Council; and 

ii) agree that the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) be 
given delegated authority to convene Licensing Panels (Regulatory) for the 
purposes of carrying out the Council’s functions to deal with applications, 
determinations and reviews of licences or registrations, and any related 
matter, in respect of any licensed activity that is the responsibility of the 
Authority (other than under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 
2005) 

 
This matter affects all Wards within the Borough. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that: 
 
(1) the Terms of Reference of the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee and the 

Regulatory Panel as referred to in paragraphs 1.1 and 1.3 of this report be 
noted.  

 
(2) the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) be authorised to 

carry out the wishes of the Group Leaders in allocating Members to 
membership of the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee and to appoint those 
Members with effect from the date at which the proper officer is advised of the 
names of such Members. 

 
(3) the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer)  be given delegated 

authority, in consultation with the Chair and Spokespersons to convene 
Licensing Panels (Regulatory) as and when required for the purposes of 
carrying out the Council’s functions to deal with applications, determinations 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



and reviews of licences or registrations, and any related matter, in respect of 
any licensed activity that is the responsibility of the Authority (other than under 
the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005). 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

1.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1.1 The Terms of Reference of the Regulatory and General Purposes Committee 
as contained in the Constitution (approved by Council on 25 May 2022), 
requires the Committee to appoint five (5) of its members, politically balanced, 
to the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee. 
 

1.2 The Charitable Trust Sub-Committee has responsibility for discharging the 
Council’s functions as corporate trustee of the following charitable 
organisations: 
1.2.1 The Callister Trust (Charity Number 520017) 
1.2.2 Wirral Mayor’s Charity 
 

1.3 The Terms of Reference as amended at Council on 6 September 2021 also 
allow for the convening of Sub-Committees (Licensing Panels – Regulatory) 
of between three (3) and five (5) members of the Regulatory and General 
Purposes Committee, exempt from political balance but not formed solely by 
members of one Group, with responsibility for the Council’s functions to deal 
with applications, determinations and reviews of licences or registrations, and 
any related matter, in respect of any licensed activity that is the responsibility 
of the Authority (other than under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 
2005).  

 
2.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
2.1 The terms of reference of both the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee and 

Licensing Panels – Regulatory, and the relevant rules of procedure are set out 
within the Constitution of the Council.  As such no other options can be 
considered. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Once appointed to the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee Members will be 

responsible for discharging the Council’s functions where it acts as corporate 
trustee, which currently relates to the following two charitable organisations: 

(a) The Callister Trust (Charity Number 520017) 

(b) Wirral Mayor’s Charity (Charity No.: 518288) 
 
3.2 Licensing Panels (Regulatory) are convened to allow the consideration by 

Members of applications, determinations and reviews of licences or 
registrations, and any related matter, in respect of any licensed activity that is 
the responsibility of the Authority (other than under the Licensing Act 2003 or 

Page 24



the Gambling Act 2005), such as skin piercing, hackney carriage and private 
hire vehicle, driver and operator licenses. 

 
3.3 To allow effective management of applications, etc within relevant statutory 

timescales or otherwise in a timely manner, where the required decision is 
outside of officer delegated powers, a Licensing Panel can be convened 
consisting of between 3 and 5 members of the Committee to consider and 
determine the matter. 

 
3.4 The setting up and running of Panels is an administrative function managed 

by the Council’s Democratic Services and it is proposed to Members that they 
delegate authority to the Director of Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
to convene such Panels as and when required in consultation with the Chair 
and Spokespersons. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The Regulatory and General Purposes Committee’s Terms of Reference 

require compliance with the requirements of sections 15 to 17 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, and the relevant regulations concerning 
political balance on committees and sub-committees.  Such political 
proportionality will therefore apply to membership of the Charitable Trusts 
Sub-Committee but not to Licensing Panels – Regulatory in light of the 
amended Terms of Reference approved at Council on 6 September 2021 as 
referred to in paragraph 1.3 above. 

 
5.2 The table below sets out the proportionality calculations for the allocation of 5 

seats on the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee.  
 

GROUP NO. OF SEATS 

Labour 2 

Conservative 2 

Green 1 

Liberal Democrat 0 

 
 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1 There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. 

 
 
 

Page 25



7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 There is a requirement under the Council’s Constitution that Members be 

appointed to the Charitable Trusts Sub-Committee and that Licensing Panels 
are convened to carry out the Council’s functions. 
 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 It is for the political groups to decide who they wish to nominate to the 

Charitable Trusts Sub Committee. 
 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. This report has no 
impact on equalities. 

 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The recommendations contained within this report are expected to have no 

impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases. 
 
 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from the content of this report. 
 
 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Anne Beauchamp 
  (Anne Beauchamp, Democratic Services Officer) 
  telephone:  Tel: 0151 691 8608 
  email:  annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Council’s Constitution: Part 3B Committee Terms of Reference.  
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Council  AGM Meeting  28 September 2020 

Council AGM Meeting 26 May 2021 

Council Meeting 6 September 2021 

Page 26



Council AGM Meeting 25 May 2022 

 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  

 

REGULATORY AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 7 June 2022 
 

REPORT TITLE: REQUEST TO USE THE WIRRAL COAT OF ARMS 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC AND MEMBER SERVICES 

 
 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report deals with a request received by the Mayor from Tim Mallion, Club Secretary to 
the Tricolore Great Britain Limited - Ducati Owners Club Great Britain, to use the Council’s 
Coat of Arms to highlight the Wirral Branch of the National Club and help promote the 
Wirral at national motorcycle events. 
 
The Club Secretary report, dated 16 March 2022, is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
A mock up of the requested badge / logo is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
RECOMMENDATION/S 

 

The Regulatory and General Purposes Committee is requested consider and decide upon 
the request for the use of the Council’s Coat of Arms by the of the Tricolore Great Britain 
Limited - Ducati Owners Club Great Britain (Wirral Branch). 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

 
THE COAT OF ARMS AND THE BADGE 

 
1.1 The Council has an official Coat of Arms granted by the Kings of Arms under the 

royal authority.  The right to use the Coat of Arms is exclusive to the Council and 
cannot be passed on to a third party, however, the Badge derived from the Coat of 
Arms can be used as a “community emblem” available for display by local 
organisations with the consent of the Council. 

 
1.2 This report deals with a request received by the Mayor from Tim Mallion, Club 

Secretary to the Tricolore Great Britain Limited - Ducati Owners Club Great Britain, 
to use the Council’s Coat of Arms to highlight the Wirral Branch of the National Club 
and aid promotion of the Wirral at national motorcycle events. 

 
1.3 The Club Secretary report dated 16 March 2022 is attached as Appendix 1 to this 

report. A mock up of the requested badge / logo is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
2.1 That the request for use of the Wirral Coat of Arms not be approved. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
3.1 Wirral Branch-was established by Mr Mallion over ten years ago, and comprises 

sixty one members, the majority of whom reside in or around the Wirral. 
 
3.2 The Club meets regularly and at the time of writing this report has a full diary of 

events for 2022. As a branch holds many charity events such as the Wirral Ducati 
Owners Club bike show held at the Swinging Arm pub in Birkenhead. Local bikers 
are invited to attend the show and prizes are awarded for their bikes etc. Monies are 
raised through a variety of raffle items which are then donated to Claire House and 
other local children's charities. 

 
3.3 The Club regularly takes part in both Wirral Egg Runs one at Christmas and one for 

Easter, and other branches from all over the UK were invited to join the Wirral 
branch on Sunday 3rd of April for the Egg Run to Clatterbridge Hospital – at the time 
of writing the report around ninety members were expected to attend. 

 
3.4 The Wirral Branch attends shows all over the UK and this year a trip is planned to 

Italy for World Ducati Week in Misano July, and as stated, by inviting other branches 
to events the club wishes to continue to promote examples what the Wirral has to 
offer. 

 
3.5 The club would like to utilise the Coat of Arms on clothing and badges to be worn at 

National Club events to aid promotion of the Wirral Branch of the club and encourage 
other branches to visit Wirral and to enjoy the varied attractions and locations of 
interest. 

Page 30



 

 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1 There are no resource, staffing, ICT or other asset implications arising from the use 

of the Wirral Coat of Arms by voluntary groups and / or Wirral based clubs. Any such 
matters may be brought to the attention of the committee at the time of consideration 
of this request. 

 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The primary risk arising from the granting of this request relates to reputational risk 

to the Council and Borough. Given the long-established history of the club (over 10 
years on Wirral) and its own reputation as a well respected local club. Full 
consideration has been given to this matter prior to presenting the request to 
Committee.  
 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 The request forming the basis of this report to Committee was received via the 

Mayor’s Office and is redirected for approval by elected members of the Committee. 
 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. There are no equality 
implications arising from this report. 

 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to 

have minimal or no impact on the emission of Greenhouse Gases.              
 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Though promotion of Wirral by a locally based branch of a national club, it is hoped 

that by encouraging visitors to Wirral, economic benefits may be gained in terms of 
the visitor economy and tourism. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Patrick Sebastian 
  Principal Democratic and member Services Officer 
  telephone:  Tel: 0151 691 8424 
  email:  patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk 
 

Page 31



 

 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Tricolore Great Britain Limited - Ducati Owners Club Great Britain 

(Wirral Branch Secretary Report) 
Appendix 2  Mock up image of proposed use 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Past papers in respect of applications for use of Wirral Coat of Arms 
Club history of the Ducati Owners Club GB here: https://www.docgb.org/ 
 

Page 32

https://www.docgb.org/


Tricolore Great Britain Limited-Ducati Owners Club Great Britain 

Secretary Report October 2020-April 2022 

March 16th 2022 

Introduction  

I have great pleasure in presenting my Secretary’s Report. 

Acknowledgements 

I have been in this role since October 2020 and I am indebted to the many CoM and 

club members, who have assisted me within my role over this period. 

I would also like to bring to notice those who continue to contribute to the running of 

the club. Branch leaders, members and volunteers who continue to give up their time 

so generously and without whom the club would simply not exist. 

Many thanks are due to Martyn Edwards who as Chairman has worked tirelessly in 

the running of the club and promoting Ducati Owners Club GB not only around the 

UK but also in Europe. I know we are very highly thought of by those at Ducati UK 

and the management at Ducati in Italy. 

The Council of Management 

The current CoM is made up of thirteen members three of which are ladies. All have 

various roles within the club and each member carries out their duties for free. When 

I became secretary, the world was still struggling with Covid. This had a big impact 

on the club regarding events etc many being cancelled. In view of this the CoM has 

continued to meet via Zoom and progress club business. Approximately twenty 

meetings have been held since I became club secretary. 

It was nice to have our last CoM meeting at the Shepton Mallet Classic Bike Show 

February and for the first time in some months this was held in person face to face. 

Attendance at the meetings has been consistent, extensive and varied. Discussions 

taken place on all issues pertaining to the running of the club.  

I would like to pay tribute to all our CoM members for their tireless efforts in the 

delivery of club 

business throughout the year and for giving up their valuable time. 

Financial Management 

Club finances are managed by our treasurer Lisa Richards, and she continues to do 

a fantastic job. 

Membership fees have not increased for some time now and at the last budget 

meeting which took place on the 2nd of February 2022 I’m happy to report that the 

club is in a stable position regarding finances. This is also taking into consideration 

that all of this year 2022 expenditure being accounted for. We have a plan put in 

Page 33



place to raise money over the next three years to help with the clubs 50th 

celebrations in 2024. 

General 

Other factors for the stability of the club are the ability to have good communication 

with our members. 

Our club website continues to be the main source for cascading information to 

members. Kev Baker has maintained the site for many years and has worked 

diligently behind the scenes in keeping this up to date. It is easily accessible and 

easy to follow. We have also recently added Ducati Archiving section which is a 

huge success. Colin Darlow and Kevin have again worked tirelessly on this and have 

been helped by other CoM members to achieve their goal. Well done all for 

volunteering and giving up your time. 

This site I believe is the best in Europe for information and literature held for Ducati 

Motorcycles and is the envy of many other motorcycle clubs. 

Guy Gagen in his role Branch Co Ordinator keeps in touch with all branch 

representatives on a regular basis and is aware of what members want, What they 

think about the way the club is run etc. He is also the direct link for members to have 

something discussed on their behalf at the COM meeting. This shows there is in 

place that close contact for all club members if required. 

We had thirty five branches around the UK and we have just recently set up two new 

DOC GB branches in Scotland. Those being named Scotland West and Scotland 

East. 

 As a club we have an excellent Merchandise Store suppling a wide variety of quality 

items to the members. This is being run by Colin Richards very successfully. In his 

time in charge the quality of the stock has improved vastly, and this shows in the 

amount of stock sold. The recent Budget meeting disclosed the Merchandise had 

made a sizeable profit for the club so well-done Colin. 

We have an excellent club magazine DESMO which is edited and looked after by 

Jilly Penegar. This is yet another example of keeping in contact with the members. 

The articles are informative, and we have several advertisers wanting their 

businesses to be included. 

The club is also affiliated to many other motorcycling bodies this helps to build strong 

ties with these associations thus gaining wider interests for our members. We have 

representatives with the BMF John Nicholas and MAG Clive Fitzgerald. 

We are affiliated to the ACU, and currently have around two hundred race passes 

from for our club members to use in what ever form of racing they would like to take 

up. 

We hold a Northern and Southern Rally as well as putting on and attending other 

shows throughout the year. All of which are very well supported and at times 

generate much needed money for local charities. 

Page 34



We are also doing well regarding membership to the club which currently stands at 

around 2,600. A big incentive for joining ourselves lies with the popularity of Ducati’s 

fabulous new models and the dealer referral schemes. There is palpable excitement 

within the members, as it looks like WDW will be going ahead in July 2022, so much 

to look forward to! 

Conclusion 

The club has faced challengers in the time I have been secretary regarding diversity, 

equal rights and the general running of the club. 

By working as one team and putting the clubs best interests foremost, while adhering 

to the Articles of Association we have overcome hurdles and moved on, whilst others 

have fallen to the wayside. 

We are a club that is open to all, holds high standards and morals in all that we do, 

and expects the same of its members. 

Things have never looked as good for the club as it does currently. We have a 

healthy bank account; we are investing in the future of the club. We currently have a 

membership of around 2,600 and growing. 

I am proud to be the secretary of this club. 

Long may this continue. Keep up the great work! 

 

I hereby submit my report. 

Timothy P Mallion 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 MINUTES OF THE REGULATORY PANEL
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/04/2022 Regulatory Panel
	Minutes


	6 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE REGULATORY PANEL AND THE CHARITABLE TRUSTS SUB-COMMITTEE
	7 Request to use the Wirral Coat of Arms
	Enc. 1 for Request to use the Wirral Coat of Arms
	Enc. 2 for Request to use the Wirral Coat of Arms


